
 

 

Northampton Pensioners' Forum 
 

on Thursday, 21 March 2013 at 2:00 pm until not later than 4.00 pm 
 

in The Godwin Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE.  
 

Agenda 
 

1. Welcomes and Introductions   
 

2. Apologies from people who can't make it to the meeting   
 

3. Minutes and Matters Arising   

a. Please use the link below to view the Minutes of the previous meeting (7 February 
2013): 

 
http://www.northamptonboroughcouncil.com/councillors/ieListDocuments.a
spx?CId=274&MId=7164&Ver=4 

 

b. Minutes of all-Forums Northampton Borough Council Budget Consultation meeting 
held on 22 January 2013.  

 

4. Pensioners' Forum - Work Planning for 2013/14   

At its last meeting, Pensioners’ Forum members agreed that the idea of having a work 
programme may be beneficial as often there were too many topics covered in one meeting 
which was sometimes considered a little ambitious.  
 
It was agreed that the framework of meetings be arranged by the Community Engagement 
Manager and that forum members inform him of the future topics that they would like 
covered.   

 

5. Pensioners' Forum - Meeting dates for 2013/14   
 

6. Community News Exchange   
 

7. Any Other Business   
 

8. Date and venues of future Forum Meetings   

 The next meeting of the Pensioners’ Forum will take place at 2pm on Thursday 6 June 
2013 in the Guildhall. Room details to be confirmed. 

  

 

Map and directions at: www.northampton.gov.uk/guildhall  
 

For more information about this meeting please contact:  
Joe Biskupski, Community Engagement Officer: 
 

 jbiskupski@northampton.gov.uk 
 
 Tel: 0300 330 7000 

 



 

More information about the Forum generally is at: www.northampton.gov.uk/forums  
 
Facebook page: www.northampton.gov.uk/pensionersforumonfacebook  

 
 

Please note that this Forum is supported and funded by Northampton Borough Council.  
The Forum may work in partnership and collaboration with other community groups, councils 
and local services from time to time. The views expressed and decisions taken by the Forum 
are not necessarily those of Northampton Borough Council.  
 



 
Northampton Pensioners' Forum Minutes - Thursday, 7 February 2013 

Northampton Borough Council  
 
Northampton Pensioners' Forum 
 
Thursday, 7 February 2013 
 
  
1. WELCOMES AND INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chair and Co-Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and members of the 
forum took the opportunity to introduce themselves. 
 
Present were: Councillor Brian Oldham, Brian Nichols, John Rawlings, Jacqueline 
Forrest – Smith, Harry Tuttle, Hazel Tuttle, Joyce Smith, Norman Sharp, David 
Hewitt, Tony Mallard, Brian Dix  
 

2. APOLOGIES FROM PEOPLE WHO CAN'T MAKE IT TO THE MEETING 

There were none  
 

3. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 13th of December 2012 were agreed. There 
were no matters arising. 
 
Members of the forum were informed of the passing of Mr Samuel Owusu-Akuffo, a 
forum member and a member of Pensioners Voice. Forum members were informed 
that there was to be a memorial services on the 1st March 2013 at the Queensgrove 
Methodist Church.   
 

4. NORTHAMPTON INTERCHANGE UPDATE (MIKE KITCHEN - NBC) 

Since the last update on the bus interchange, in 2011, the forum were informed that 
there had been considerable progress made with regards to the development of the 
Northampton Interchange. It was noted that planning permission had been granted 
and that funding had been secured through the Capital Programme and £4 million 
investment from West Northants Development Corporation.  The Principal 
Regeneration Officer updated members by informing them of a number of projects 
undertaken which included re - directing all utility services to make way for the 
development, the appointment of Kier Constructions and current demolition work 
being undertaken at Sheep Street. He explained that there had been no significant 
archaeological finds, but that a number of wells and a cellar had been discovered. It 
was noted that once the demolition had been completed, construction of the Bus 
Interchange would commence in March 2013 with an expected completion date of 
December 2013. It was explained that the works along the Drapery would include; 
new bus shelters, new paving and a new crossing – to ensure safe crossing. There 
would be 14 bus stops and another 8 along the Drapery in total.  
 
In response to a question asked, the Principal Regeneration Officer explained that 
the stops on the Drapery and the new Interchange would not be physically joined in 
any way. With regards to work carried out on the Drapery, it was explained that it 
would be carried out in phases to reduce disruption to retailers and passengers and 

Agenda Item 3

1



 
Northampton Pensioners' Forum Minutes - Thursday, 7 February 2013 

that the construction of the Bus Interchange could be done with little detrimental 
effect on the traffic and re-routing of services.  
 
Some members of the forum expressed concern over the number of buses using 
the facility, the time buses would have, per drop off/pick up, which may result in 
buses blocking other bays, and the number of people waiting at the stops. The 
Principal Regeneration Officer explained that he had not been involved in the 
scheduling of the buses and that would be a matter for the County Council.  
 
The Chair commented that the negotiations were on-going and suggested that the 
officers speak to the Bus Operators and report back to the forum at a later date.  
 
Concern was also expressed by members that National Express would continue to 
use Victoria Street to drop travellers off which would be further away to the Bus 
Interchange than the current Bus Station. It was suggested that a large proportion of 
people using National Express would be pensioners who would be going on coach 
holidays and that the extra distance to the new facility needed consideration.   
 
Members were informed that bus routes were not within the remit of the Borough 
Council, as it would have to go through the Transport Commission, but they could 
advise as an authority. A discussion ensued about the number of buses that would 
be able to use the Interchange with one member suggesting that it could facilitate 27 
buses and therefore no buses would have to use the Drapery. 
The Co- Chair commented that initially, the Forum had supported the proposed Bus 
interchange, but that they now had a number of concerns and were therefore unable 
to support it. They expressed their dissatisfaction that they had written to the 
relevant Officer to show their concern but that no response had been received. 
 
AGREED: 
 

a) That a relevant officer attends a future meeting to report back on any updates 
from Bus Operators. 

  
b) That further information be sought about the routeing of buses and reported 

back at a later date. 
 

c) That the Principal Regeneration Officer speak to the Head of Planning to 
answer the letter submitted by the Forum. 
 

  
 

5. NORTHAMPTON MARKET (DERRICK SIMPSON - NBC) 

The Town Centre Manager updated members of the forum and explained that the 
market had been in existence for hundreds of years and had been a chartered 
market for over 800 years. It was explained that they were able to restrict another 
market from setting up business within six and two-thirds of a mile of the market. 
The forum was informed that there was a comprehensive list of all the regulation for 
the market holder and that there was collaborative working with a number of 
agencies including Trading Standards and the Police.  It was noted that recently 

2



 
Northampton Pensioners' Forum Minutes - Thursday, 7 February 2013 

there had been an instance of a Trader selling ‘legal highs’ but that this had ceased; 
whilst not illegal, it was felt as though it was not desirable. There had been much 
effort made in promoting the Market to attract new Traders including a monthly 
antiques market. 
 
In response to a question, the Town Centre Manager explained that the ‘six and 
two-thirds’ rule did not apply to car boot sales but that organisers of the boot sales 
would have to inform the Council. The forum discussed the practice of selling 
produce by the bowl and expressed some concern that they were not always able to 
see the scales when their goods were being weighed, and consequently lacked 
assurance that they were getting an accurate measure of goods for their money. 
The Town Centre Manager, having listened to the concerns, explained that he 
would meet with Market Traders to encourage and request that the Traders put their 
scales at the front of the their displays, to ensure visibility.  
 
In response to another question asked, the Town Centre Manager explained that 
should any member of the public want to make a complaint about a Market Trader, 
they could do so by contacting operatives and officers of the Council who patrolled 
the market. It was noted that there was also a static mobile unit where phone 
numbers could be obtained should members of the public want to contact someone 
about a Trader(s).  
 
AGREED: 
 
That Market Traders be asked to display their scales at the front of their stalls or 
displays.  
 

6. WELFARE REFORM (LAURA BESSELL - NBC) 

The Chair introduced the Benefits Team Leader and suggested that Forum 
Members ask specific questions that they wanted answering as the topic was 
complex and members had individual concerns. Responding to a concern of a 
member, it was explained that a lot of information had been posted out to residents 
who would be affected by the reform, but that there was also a telephone number on 
letters whereby people who had concerns could speak to an officer at the Council 
and an outreach team who would assist people, particularly vulnerable people, in 
applying for relevant grants to ensure that people would receive what they would be 
entitled to. Concern was expressed about people who were the most vulnerable 
such as those affected by a disability. It was explained that the funding from national 
government had been reduced but that Discretionary Housing Payments could be 
made, but there was a limited budget and therefore the money would have to be 
spent wisely. If the money set aside for the Discretionary Housing Payments was 
not used, then it would be lost to National Government but that the only figures 
available were currently available for 2013/14 and not any future years.  
 
The Benefits Team Leader also explained that one change to be introduced by the 
Act would be that Housing Benefit Payments would be paid directly to the tenant 
and not to the Landlord – which had previously been an option. It was suggested 
that this could lead to problems, with the poorest people having access to a large 
amount of money, spending it and subsequently getting into rent arrears and further 

3



 
Northampton Pensioners' Forum Minutes - Thursday, 7 February 2013 

into poverty. The Chair explained that this was national government mandate and 
not specific to each local authority. It was further noted that due to the direct 
payments to tenants, everybody in receipt of such payments would also need to 
have a bank account which may also prove problematic as some people would be 
exempt from holding an account.  
 
In response to questions asked about the ‘bedroom tax’ it was explained that should 
you have an extra bedroom that was not in use, the tenant would be liable to pay a 
percentage rate for that room or find alternative smaller accommodation. However, it 
was further noted that there was shortfall of 2 and 3 bedroom homes and that 
National Government would therefore encourage people to move from the area, to a 
smaller residency in another area.  It was also explained that it would be likely that 
the demands on housing would be significantly impacted on as result of an overspill 
from London.    
 

7. PENSIONERS' FORUM - WORK PLANNING FOR 2013 (JOE BISKUPSKI - 
NBC) 

The Community Engagement Manager asked whether forum members were content 
with how the forums were being arranged or if they would feel it more helpful to 
have an annual work programme. 
 
The forum members agreed that the idea of having a work programme may be 
beneficial as often there were too many topics covered in one meeting which was 
sometimes considered a little ambitious. However, they concurred that the meetings 
should continue to have a degree of flexibility to ensure that topical discussions 
would continue. It was also noted that with a framework in place the Community 
Engagement Manager would have more time to arrange for relevant speakers to 
attend forum meetings.  
 
AGREED: 
 
That at least 6 meetings per year be scheduled 
 
That a framework of meetings be arranged by the Community Engagement 
Manager and that forum members inform him of the future topics that they would 
like covered.  
 

8. COMMUNITY NEWS EXCHANGE 

• Northampton Borough Council would be transferring the management of 
Abington Community Centre to a local community organisation. 
 
 

ACTION: The Community Engagement Manager to explore whether the Forum was 
still affiliated with the National Pensioners Convention.  
 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

There was none  
 

4



 
Northampton Pensioners' Forum Minutes - Thursday, 7 February 2013 

10. SUGGESTIONS FOR ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS OR FORUM 
ACTIVITIES 

Items for the next and future meetings were suggested as: 
 

• Housing Stock Transfer 

• NHS/Liverpool Health Pathway 

• Corrosion of pathway and highways   
  
 

11. DATE AND VENUES OF FUTURE FORUM MEETINGS 

The forum members would be informed of the date of the future meeting as 
clarification was needed to establish when purdah would occur but it was hoped to 
be early to mid-March 2013.  
 

 
The meeting concluded at 16.01 

 
 

5



1 

 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

ALL-FORUMS BUDGET CONSULTATION MEETING 

 
Tuesday, 22 January 2013 

 
18:30 in the Jeffery Room, Northampton Guildhall 

 
Present: Christine Woodhams, Barbara Barber, Larry Barber, Roger Rumsey, David 
Hewitt, Lee Gilbert, Councillor Suresh Patel (NBC), Councillor Brian Oldham (NBC), 
Councillor Phil Larratt (PL) (NBC), Councillor Alan Botwood (NBC Cabinet Member 
for Finance) (AB), Isabell Proctor (NBC Director of Resources) (IP), Joe Biskupski 
(NBC Community Engagement Manager) (notes). 
 
Introduction – Isabell Proctor introduced Councillor Botwood and herself. 
 
IP explained the context of the Borough Council’s budget. She said that only a 
relatively small share of Council Tax (CT) revenue goes to NBC, the largest amount 
goes to the County Council. 
 
IP said that local government budgets are currently extremely stretched in the face of 
government cutbacks and the economic situation. 
 
IP said that there is no transfer between the council’s Revenue budget and its Capital 
budget. 
 
Councillor Botwood made his presentation on the draft budget for the council. The 
following comments / questions were raised by those present: 
 
Q.  Ground Works – Councillor Botwood said that the council will get more value if 

the money spent in-house. Where will the money be spent? 
 
A. If the service provided is directly under our control, we can get better value for 

money  

 
Q. What impact will the NNDR review have on charities? 
 
A. The council worked closely with charities developing the new scheme, and it is 

anticipated that charities will not be unduly impacted. There will be incentives 
for charities to share back office functions and facilities. For example, if a charity 
is co-located with another organisation, there will not be an increase in CT. 

 
Q. Regarding the Ground Works scheme – if we didn’t fund Groundworks, how can 

we continue providing the service, how can we save money? 
 
A. (AB) There are a number of ways, including seeking sponsorship 
 
Q. What will be happening with CCTV? 
 
A. (AB) we review CCTV constantly, and work with the police to ensure that these 

are most appropriately located – e.g. near sheltered housing. 
 

6



2 

 

 Comment: CCTV acts as a deterrent. 
 
. (IP) CCTV cameras that are in high activity areas are priorities to remain 

switched on.  
 
Q. What monitoring is taking place? 
 
A. (IP) CCTV cameras are recorded, but not everyone can watch all cameras at all 

times. If there is a crime, the police can request a recording.  
 
 Comment: Can we work smarter with the cameras that we have? 
 
 (AB) Yes 
 
 Comment: In Kingsley (Phippsville) there is no right turn into Kettering Road. 

However, there needs to be a policeman present to see the right turn into 
Kettering Road. Needs to be more joined-up working across a range of 
agencies. 

 
 Comment: (PL) In Nottingham the CCTV can identify people littering and Fixed 

Penalty Notices are issued. 
 
 IP will pass these comments on to people who are responsible for CCTV 

cameras. 
 
Q. Can we issue Police Community Support Officers with cameras? 
 
A. (IP) PCSOs are employed by the police – we cannot issue cameras. 
 
 (PL) Each Chief Constable can give PCOSs additional enforcement powers. In 

Northampton additional powers should be introduced by Chief Constable. 
 
 Cllr Oldham will ask Adam Simmonds to come to Pensioners’ Forum. 
 
 Cllr Patel – Deputy PCC will be coming to next meeting of Diverse Communities 

Equalities Forum. 
 
 Comment: From a civil liberties point of view, we have more cameras per head 

of population than any other country. 
 
Q. Greyfriars Bus Station won’t be used to garage buses overnight. During period 

of darkness, will security be needed? 
 
 Comment: the bus station needs floodlights. 
 
Q. Where will buses be garaged overnight? 
 
A. Rothersthorpe Road – Stagecoach has a stopover place which can 

accommodate buses overnight. 
 
Q. An item of growth is £12,760 for Park Ranger vehicles. How many Park Ranger 

vehicles can £12,000 buy? 

7



3 

 

 
A. (AB) The council is looking at sponsorship to contribute to the cost of vehicles. 
 
 (IP) The council is looking at contract hire of vehicles. 
 
 (AB) Greyfriars Bus station still being used as a station during the day. 
 
 Internal savings: AB said that internal reviews are being carried out all the 

time. 
 
Q. What does moving services into LGSS mean? 
 
A. The Borough Council will share services with LGSS. They will take over the 

administrative and back office functions currently undertaken by directly 
employed Borough Council staff. 

 
Q. Is LGSS a profit-making organisation? 
 
A. It is a collaboration between Northamptonshire County Council and 

Cambridgeshire County Council, to which other organisations join in. 
 
 (AB) if other Local Authorities join in later on, NBC will also benefit from any 

future savings. 
 
Q. Is this similar to what’s happening with Enterprise? 
 
A. There are similarities, but Enterprise is a for-profit organisation, but LGSS is not 

done for profit. 
 
Q. Is the contract only for 5 years? 
 
A. The agreement is for 5 years, and will be reviewed, with an option to renew. 

The delegation agreed by the council needs to be robust. We delegate our 
services to LGSS on our behalf, and we can un-delegate them. 

 
 Comment. Savings mean people’s jobs 
 
Q.  Why are we sticking stamps on envelopes? For example, letters were sent out 

regarding Housing Stock Transfer. 
 
A. Sometimes we have to consult by letter. There are certain protocols we have to 

go through. We need to ensure that there is reliable communication. 
 
Q. Are all staff Essential Car User Allowances being taken away? 
 
A. (IP) it is beginning with senior staff. However, all staff will be affected over time, 

and negotiations are being carried out with trade unions. 
 
 Comment: In private industry, people pay their own professional fees. (IP) NBC 

have paid only professional fees if it is necessary to carry out the work. The 
proposal is to stop paying professional fees from 2014 to give staff time to 
adjust. 

8



4 

 

 
Q. When bin collections are made, if anything is spilt, it is frequently left on the 

street. 
 
A. (IP) if this happens, customers should contact NBC and this will be passed to 

Enterprise to resolve. 
 
Q. Who monitors the performance of Enterprise? 
 
A. (IP) The Borough Council monitor performance via performance indicators and 

complaints received are part of this process. 
 
 Comment: We need to ensure that we get value for money from our refuse 

collection. 
 
 (AB) The contract is being monitored, and this is being addressed. 
 
Q. Are inspections made of grass cutting work? 
 
A. (AB) the contracts are monitored and Enterprise monitors the work they carry 

out, but they cannot inspect everything. They cannot collect and remove grass. 
 
 Cllr Larratt would like to propose that we do a session for all forums on the 

Enterprise contract. 
 
 Comment: Before the Enterprise contract, the Borough Council had a 

mower with a hopper. Why can’t we do that now? 
 
Q. What does providing floating support for tenants mean? 
 
A. (IP) this means providing additional support for vulnerable people. 
 
Q. Southfield children are being prevented from playing on playing fields by 

children from Goldings, particularly on local football pitches. 
 
A. This is outside our control. 
 

Comment: The skate park was money well spent. 
 

IP concluded and thanked all for being present. 
 

(AB) it is important to use your borough councillor to lobby. 
 

(IP) budget surgeries are being carried out on Monday 28 January at 13.30, and 
on Tuesday 29 January from 18:00. A public consultation session is being held 
on Thursday 24 January at 18:00. 

 
Q:  30% of the public do not have access to computers. They are excluded from 

consultation. How will the council address this? 
 
A. (AB) we cannot know who has access to a computer. However, we do have 

computers in the One Stop Shop at the Guildhall. 

9



Northampton Pensioners’ Forum 

Meeting dates for 2013/14 

Thursday 6 June 

Thursday 12 September 

Thursday 31 October 

Thursday 12 December 

Thursday 6 February 

Thursday 20 March  

Thursday 5 June  

 

 

Agenda Item 5

10


	Agenda
	3 Minutes and Matters Arising
	Minutes of all-Forums Northampton Borough Council Budget Consultation meeting (22 January 2013)

	5 Pensioners' Forum - Meeting dates for 2013/14

